

GHOSTLY FOSSIL-X-rays reveal the pattern of fish bones embedded in shale slab. Photograph by Fred Anderegg, Princeton, N. J.

X-Rays Detect Fossils

➤ X-RAYS are being used in the laboratories of Princeton University to study the fossils of hundreds of small fish found embedded in a shale deposit when excavations were being made for the University's new library building. This novel use of X-rays not only saves many hours of tedious scraping and brushing ordinarily used to lay bare rock-embedded fossils, but it brings out fine details of the bony structure that the usual technique fails to disclose.

When a slab of shale suspected of harboring a fossil is split, the faint outlines of a fish may appear on the freshly exposed surface. Instead of going on with the chip-scrape-and-brush technique, the slab is then placed on a film holder and exposed to X-rays. When the film is developed the entire skeleton shows up in minute detail. Usually the head is strongly outlined, with the body bones, fins and tail in ghostly tracery.

With only a few exceptions, the fossils found in the Princeton campus excavation are of a species known scientifically

as Osteoplaurus newarki, belonging to the ancient order of fishes called the coelacanths. The specimens are all small, ranging from one to eight inches in length. One prominent characteristic in which they differ from modern fishes is a third lobe projecting from the middle of the forked tail. Their scales seem to have been covered with sharp pricklesdoubtless making them uncomfortable morsels for bigger fish to swallow.

These fish lived far back in the Triassic period, towards the end of the Age of Dinosaurs, when what are now layers of shale and related rocks underlying New Jersey's present low hills were soft mud on the bottom of the sea. Fish that died sank to the bottom, were covered with more mud; then more fish died and still more mud covered them, until there was a vertical layer-cake of death. Still deeper burial and resulting heavier pressure, continued for ages, hardened the mud strata into layers of shale, with the now fossilized remains of the fish sandwiched between them.

Science News Letter, December 28, 1946

Health Centers for Lepers

➤ LEPERS won't be treated like lepers when recommendations of the advisory committee on leprosy to the U.S. Public Health Service go into effect. And the 2,000 to 3,000 lepers now roaming at large will be found and given the benefit of modern effective treatment for the disease.

The National Leprosarium at Carville,

La., should be replaced by four Public Health Service special treatment centers, the committee advised at the close of its two-day session.

The special treatment centers for leprosy should be located, one each, in California, Texas, Florida and Louisiana, the four states where leprosy is endemic and seems to flourish. With these centers, and efforts made to give lepers outpatient treatment, using segregation only as a last resort, patients with leprosy will be able to follow more normal lives.

Relaxation of the 29-year-old restrictions on interstate travel of lepers is also advised. This and some other of the committee's recommendations cannot be put into effect without new legislation, it was pointed out. Existing regulations should be codified and published for the benefit of lepers and the general public, the committee recommended.

Good results now obtained with the modern drug, promin, in treatment of leprosy and recognition that leprosy is not as contagious as once believed are the basis for the recommendations.

Science News Letter, December 28, 1946

SCIENCE NEWS LETTER

DECEMBER 28, 1946

The weekly summary of Current Science, published every Saturday by SCIENCE SERVICE.

Inc., 1719 N St., N. W., Washington 6, D. C.

NOrth 2255. Edited by WATSON DAVIS.

Subscriptions—\$5.00 a year; two years, \$8.00:

15 cents a copy. Back numbers more than six months old, if still available, 25 cents.

Copyright, 1946, by Science Service, Inc. Republication of any portion of SCIENCE NEWS

LETTER is strictly prohibited. Newspapers, magazines and other publications are invited to avail themselves of the numerous syndicate services issued by Science Service.

Entered as second class matter at the post

services issued by Science Service.

Entered as second class matter at the post office at Washington, D. C., under the Act of March 3, 1879. Established in mimeographed form March 18, 1922. Title registered as trademark, U. S. and Canadian Patent Offices. Indexed in Readers' Guide to Periodical Literature, Abridged Guide, and the Engineering Index.

The New York Museum of Science and Industry has elected Science News Letter as its official publication to be received by its members.

official publication to be received by its members.

Member Audit Bureau of Circulation. Advertising Representatives: Howland and Howland, Inc., 393 7th Ave., N.Y.C., PEnnsylvania 6-5566, and 360 N. Michigan Ave., Chicago, STate 4439. SCIENCE SERVICE

The Institution for the Popularization of Science organized 1921 as a non-profit corporation.

Board of Trustees—Nominated by the American Association for the Advancement of Science: Edwin G. Conklin, American Philosophical Society; Otis W. Caldwell, Boyce Thompson Institute for Plant Research; Willard L. Valentine, Editor of Science. Nominated by the National Academy of Sciences: Harlow Shapley, Harvard College Observatory; Warren H. Lewis, Wistar Institute; R. A. Millikan, California Institute of Technology. Nominated by the National Research Council: Hugh S. Taylor, Princeton University; Ross G. Harrison, Yale University; Alexander Wetmore. Secretary, Smithsonian Institution. Nominated by the Journalistic Profession: A. H. Kirchhofer, Buffalo Evening News; Neil H. Swanson, Executive Editor, Sun Papers; O. W. Riegel, Washington and Lee School of Journalism. Nominated by the E. W. Scripps Estate: Max B. Cook, Scripps Howard Newspapers; H. L. Smithton, Executive Agent of E. W. Scripps Trust; Frank R. Ford, Evansville Press.

Officers-President: Harlow Shapley. President and Chairman of Executive Commit-tee: Alexander Wetmore. Treasurer: Frank R. Ford. Secretary: Watson Davis.

Staff—Director: Watson Davis. Writers: Frank Thone, Jane Stafford, Marjorie Van de Water A. C. Monahan, Martha G. Morrow, Ronald Ross. Science Clubs of America: Joseph H. Kraus, Margaret E. Patterson, Henry Platt Photography: Fremont Davis. Sales and Advertising: Hallie Jenkins. Production: Dorothy Repynolds tising: I Reynolds.